

AMERICAN TRADITIONAL JUJUTSU ASSOCIATION BYLAWS

ARTICLE I: MISSION STATEMENT

1. The Mission of the ATJA (American Traditional Jujutsu Association), Inc. is to promote interest and stimulate growth in the martial art of Jujutsu.

ARTICLE II: PURPOSES

1. The ATJA is organized exclusively for non-profit charitable and educational purposes; in particular, the advancement of traditional martial arts with a primary emphasis on jujutsu in the United States, and in general, the advancement of recreation, physical fitness, character development and educational enrichment through the art and science of Jujutsu. In pursuit of such purposes, the organization shall:
 - a. Work diligently to further the goals of ATJA Jujutsu.
 - b. Recognize other Martial Arts whose interests are in concert with the goals and purposes of the ATJA.
 - c. Establish Jujutsu training criteria and develop and conduct rank qualification tests.
 - d. Unify Jujutsu activities and standardize administrative and ranking procedures.
 - e. Inform, and promote the general welfare of the public in matters pertaining to Jujutsu and other martial arts.
 - f. Represent, and promote the interests of its members in Jujutsu.
 - g. Set, supervise, maintain and improve technical Jujutsu standards.
 - h. Grant Awards and Promotions.
 - i. Provide, maintain, manage and operate a National Jujutsu Organization and conduct activities as needed to achieve our stated mission and goals.
 - j. Grant free scholarships for disadvantaged youths until the age of majority, eighteen (18).

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP

1. Any person of good moral character regardless of nationality shall be eligible for membership in the ATJA, provided such person evidences the desire to advance the goals of Jujutsu as set forth in the Bylaws, and to comply with the Bylaws and any rules, regulations, decisions, operating procedures and interpretations properly adopted by the ATJA.

ARTICLE IV: AUTHORITY.

1. The Authority of the ATJA is derived from the ATJA Bylaws and its Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Responsibilities of the BOD of ATJA
 - a. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the overall control and management of the business affairs and properties of the Association, and may exercise all powers of the Association including the establishment of all programs, committees, policies and operating procedures of the Association. No Director may be an employee of the Association.
2. Number of Directors.
 - a. The ATJA BOD shall be comprised of 7-11 members who shall be called Directors. Whenever the number of Directors falls below 7, the remaining BOD by an affirmative vote of 2/3, may appoint

additional persons who meet the qualifications of a Director to represent the ATJA until the next election.

3. Qualifications for Directors.

- a. An individual is qualified to serve as a Director if:
 - i) such individual is a Jujutsu member of the ATJA in good standing and
 - ii) such individual holds a Jujutsu rank of Sandan or higher and
 - iii) such person supports the Bylaws and any other edicts of the ATJA.

4. Term of Office for Directors.

- a. Each Director shall serve for a three (3) year term beginning with the formal incorporation of ATJA and the first election. Each Director shall be limited to three (3) consecutive terms of office.

5. Resignations.

- a. Any Director or committee member may resign his or her position by delivering a signed instrument, either by e-mail or regular mail to the President of ATJA, with respect to his/her Board membership.

6. Removal of a Director.

- a. A Director may be removed from any office with cause by a 2/3 vote of the BOD serving at the time in any regular or special meeting. The BOD may choose to leave vacant the seat of any removed person until the next election. Cause may be failure to adhere to the Bylaws, consistent absence, and/or behavior detrimental to the goals of the organization. Any Director removed for cause shall not be allowed to be a Director for ten (10) years from date of removal from office.

ARTICLE VI: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

1. Directors shall be elected by a vote of the current ATJA membership at large. The BOD shall establish such rules and procedures for elections as deemed in the best interest of ATJA.

2. Election Officials.

- a. Three persons shall act as Inspectors or Election Officials.
- b. The Election Committee and its chairperson shall be designated by the BOD and shall serve the ATJA for the duration of the election. Thereafter, the Committee shall be disbanded.
- c. The purpose of the committee shall be to determine in a fair manner:
 - i) the number of qualified voters
 - ii) receive votes and ballots and, at the closing
 - iii) tabulate all votes
 - iv) report to the BOD the results of the election.
- d. If the committee receives any challenges:
 - i) they shall investigate and hold up the results of the election until all issues have been resolved.
 - ii) The results of their investigation, including their conclusions, shall be presented in writing to the BOD for final action and
 - iii) The BOD may then bring the details to the membership at large.
 - iv) All documents and votes shall remain in the possession of the committee for review. After a final resolution, the BOD may call for the destruction of all ballots.

ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS OF THE ATJA

1. The ATJA BOD shall elect from among the Directors,
 2. One (1) Director to act as the President of ATJA,
 3. One (1) Director to act as Vice President of ATJA, and One (1) Director to act as Secretary to the BOD, and One (1) Director to act as Treasurer of ATJA. The BOD may also act to appoint any other officers they may consider essential to the effective functioning of the Association. All Officers serve at the pleasure of the BOD and must remain directors to serve as officers.
4. Duties, Responsibilities and Authority of Officers of ATJA
- a. No officer of ATJA shall make unilateral decisions without first obtaining the approval of the BoD. Further, all decisions by the above officers affecting the whole of the Association shall be subject to approval by the BoD.

President	Vice President	Secretary	Treasurer
Manage day to day operation of ATJA	Assist President in day to day operations of ATJA.	Provide notice and agenda of all meetings	Maintain financial records and report financial status to BOD
Conduct all Meetings of Association except committee meetings		Record minutes and votes of all regular and special meetings	Maintain bank account in name of ATJA
Sign contracts and agreements on behalf of ATJA when authorized by the BOD		Provide minutes of meetings to all members	
Report to the BOD all significant actions, issues, and resolutions as they occur		Ensure annual reports to state and federal government are filed	Provide to the Secretary all data and forms necessary to file with state and federal government related to the association
	In absence of President assume duties and responsibilities of President	In absence of President and Vice President assume duties and responsibilities of President	In absence of President, Vice President, and Secretary assume duties and responsibilities of President
Other duties as determined by the BOD	Other duties as determined by the BOD	Other duties as determined by the BOD	Other duties as determined by the BOD

5. Term of Office (for Officers)
- a. All Officers shall serve for a Two (2) year term. No officer may serve for more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same office. No person shall be elected to or fulfill the duties of more than one (1) office at a time.
 - b. Any officer may be removed from office with cause at any annual meeting or special meeting called for such purpose and having a 2/3 majority vote of the BOD. Any officer so removed may not run for office for a period of Ten (10) years from date of removal.

ARTICLE VIII: MEETINGS

1. Meetings of the BOD and its committees shall be open to all ATJA members. Executive sessions will be held at the discretion of the BOD when matters concerning personnel, ethics or promotions are concerned.
2. Notice of Meetings
 - a. Written notice shall be sent to each BOD member by regular mail or e-mail stating the purpose and announcing the time and place of such meetings.
 - b. Notice of meetings shall also be posted on the ATJA website.
3. Annual Meetings
 - a. The Annual Meeting of the ATJA will normally be held in the month of June or as otherwise called for. The time, date and place of the actual meeting shall be announced at least 90 days in advance. Agenda items shall be sent to the Secretary at least 45 days prior to the meeting date. The Agenda shall be prepared by the Secretary of the BOD and posted on the ATJA website of the ATJA at least 30 days prior to the scheduled meeting. Any agenda item properly submitted (at least 45 days prior to the meeting) to the secretary by any member of the ATJA shall be included on the agenda.
4. Special Meetings.
 - a. Special meetings of the BOD may be called at any time by either:
 - i) The President of ATJA, or the Vice President of the ATJA acting in the place of said President in case of absence, death or disability of the President; or
 - ii) A call of at least one half of the BOD shall be required to hold such a Special Meeting.
 - b. The Secretary shall announce to all BOD members at least 15 days in advance the time and place for any special meeting.
 - c. Meeting agenda will be provided at the time a special meeting is first called for.
 - i) No Other Business may be presented for action at a Special Meeting.
5. Location of Meetings
 - a. Meetings may be held in person or conducted electronically.
6. Quorum.
 - a. A simple majority of the BOD serving at the time shall constitute a quorum for any meeting or special meeting that is held by which notice thereof has been made.
7. Meeting Attendance.
 - a. Any member shall be considered in attendance at any meeting or special meeting of the ATJA, if in person, by telephonic means, video conferencing or by any other device the person is able to engage in interaction and participate in the committee's proceedings.
8. Voting.
 - a. At any meeting or special meeting, each Director attending shall be entitled to one vote. There shall be no Proxy Voting at any meeting or Special Meeting of the BOD. Directors must be in attendance to have their votes recorded. Any and all matters which require a vote for passage shall be considered by those Directors present at any meeting or special meeting. All voting will be by open roll call. No secret balloting is allowed.

ARTICLE IX: COMMITTEES.

1. STANDING COMMITTEES

- a. Members of all standing committees shall be selected from ATJA members in good standing.
- b. The Standing Committees of the ATJA are as follows:
 - i) Ethics
 - ii) Promotion
 - iii) Rank Examiners
 - iv) Research and Curriculum Development
 - v) Financial
- c. The members and chair of said committees shall be nominated and approved by the BOD.
- d. The BOD shall define the purpose and scope of actions and responsibilities for each standing committee.

2. SPECIAL COMMITTEES

- a. The BOD may establish any SPECIAL committee deemed necessary. The chair and all members of each Special committee shall be defined and approved by the BOD. The BOD shall define the purpose, scope of actions, and responsibilities for each such committee.
- b. Any member of ATJA in good standing may be selected as a committee member or chairperson of any Special Committee.
- c. A majority of the members of any committee shall determine its specific actions required to achieve its' defined goal and fix a time and place for its meetings unless the BOD provides otherwise.

3. COMMITTEE REPORTS

- a. Committees, both Standing and Special, will report to the BOD at least at every annual meeting. Reports may be requested at other times by the BOD.

4. COMMITTEE OVERSIGHT

- a. The ATJA BOD by majority vote shall have the power to fill vacancies, appoint persons, change the membership of, or discharge any committee and appoint one or more ATJA members as alternate members of any committee to fill a vacancy that occurs when a member may be absent and unable to participate in such committee.

ARTICLE X: AMENDMENTS

- 4. The Bylaws of the ATJA may be altered, changed or amended in whole or part, by a 2/3 majority vote of the BOD. A motion to change the bylaws must be submitted to the BOD stating the purpose and rationale for doing so.